
Jo Miller
Chief Executive
________________________________________________________________
Issued on: Friday, 26 April, 2019

Governance Services Officer for this meeting: Andrea Hedges
Tel: 013020 736716

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council
www.doncaster.gov.uk

Agenda
____________________________________________________________________

To all Members of the

CABINET
Notice is given that a Meeting of the Cabinet is to be held as follows:

 
Venue:    007a and b - Civic Office Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU

Date:       Tuesday, 7th May, 2019

Time:      10.00 am
____________________________________________________________________

Item
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 
excluded from the meeting 

3. Public Questions and Statements 
(A period not exceeding 20 minutes for questions and statements from 
members of the public and Elected Members to the Mayor of 
Doncaster, Ros Jones. Questions/Statements should relate 
specifically to an item of business on the agenda and be limited to a 
maximum of 100 words. As stated within Executive Procedure Rule 3.3 
each person will be allowed to submit one question/statement per 
meeting. A question may only be asked if notice has been given by 
delivering it in writing or by e-mail to the Governance Team no later 
than 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 2 May, 2019. Each question or statement 
must give the name and address of the person submitting it. 
Questions/Statements should be sent to the Governance Team, Floor 
2, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU, or by email to 
Democratic.Services@doncaster.gov.uk)

Public Document Pack



4. Declarations of Interest, if any. 

5. Decision Record Forms from the meeting held on 23 April 2019  for 
noting (previously circulated) 

A.     Reports where the public and press may not be excluded

Key Decisions
6. Pathways to Progression - Ambition 2 1 - 8

7. BREXIT Preparedness Fund 9 - 18

Cabinet Members

Cabinet Responsibility For:

Chair – Ros Jones, Mayor of 
Doncaster

Budget and Policy Framework

Vice-Chair – Deputy Mayor 
Councillor Glyn Jones

Housing and Equalities 

Councillor Nigel Ball Portfolio Holder for Public Health, Leisure and 
Culture

Councillor Joe Blackham Portfolio Holder for Highways, Street Scene and 
Trading Services

Councillor Rachael Blake Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care
Councillor Nuala Fennelly Portfolio Holder for Children, Young People and 

Schools
Councillor Chris McGuinness Portfolio Holder for Communities, Voluntary Sector 

and the Environment
Councillor Bill Mordue Portfolio Holder for Business, Skills and Economic 

Development
Councillor Jane Nightingale Portfolio Holder for Customer and Corporate 

Services.



www.doncaster.gov.uk

 

Pathways to Progression: Ambition 2
____________________________________________________________________
                   

To the Chair and Members of the Cabinet

Pathways to Progression: Ambition 2

Relevant Cabinet Member(s) Wards Affected Key Decision
Cllr Nuala Fennelly, 
Children, Young People and Schools

Cllr Bill Mordue, 
Business, Skills and Economic 
Development

All Yes

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. This is to seek permission to accept an ESF grant of £299,259. The grant will 
be used to build upon the successful Ambition programme, engaging 
marginalised adults aged 18 and over, including those with multiple and 
complex barriers, to participate and engage with education, training, or 
employment. This programme will also help to support and identify underlying 
issues to move participants closer or into the labour market.

EXEMPT REPORT

2. This report is not exempt.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3. It is recommended that Cabinet:

 Accept the ESF Grant of £299,259 for use by the Council to deliver the 
ESF Pathways to Progression project and delegate the Director of 
People to enter into contract with Sheffield City Council in consultation 
with the portfolio holder.

 Use £97,040 of earmarked reserves and £152,960 Ambition underspend 
as match funding.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER?

4. Pathways to Progression is designed to have a positive impact on the citizens 

Date:  7 May 2019                               

Page 1

Agenda Item 6.



of Doncaster, providing equality of opportunity by:
Helping those individuals facing the greatest barriers to engage in and 

sustain education, employment or training
Providing opportunities which empower individuals to help themselves
Supporting local people to gain the skills they need to get jobs and benefit 

from economic growth.  Work can have a positive impact on health and 
wellbeing

BACKGROUND

5. Doncaster successfully delivered its element of the South Yorkshire Ambition 
Programme from 2015 to 2018, providing key worker support to residents 
helping them find and sustain employment.  The scheme was a success 
across South Yorkshire and this report informs members of a successful bid 
submitted to the Department of Work and Pensions for the Pathways to 
Progression programme (Ambition 2), which aims to build on this success of 
Ambition by increasing participation in the labour market, improving social 
inclusion and mobility.

6. The Pathways to progression bid responds to an opportunity to draw down 
European Social Fund (ESF) of £3.78m into the local authority areas of South 
Yorkshire. This funding is aligned to the local authorities’ statutory 
responsibilities - to engage and support vulnerable marginalised and 
disadvantaged young people not engaged in education employment or 
training (NEET) and; their priorities to support those citizens who face barriers 
to re-engage with education, training and employment and to move into, or 
closer to the labour market.

7. The bid was submitted by Sheffield City Council on behalf of a consortium 
that includes Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Councils; Sheffield City Council will act as the Accountable Body on behalf of 
the consortium

8. The ESF investment priority for the funding available is Priority Axis 1: 
Inclusive Labour Markets this priority seeks to:

Priority 1.4 - Engage marginalised adults aged 18 and over, including those 
with multiple and complex barriers to participation and:
 support them to re-engage with education, training, or employment
 address underlying issues and to move them closer or into the labour 

market

Marginalised adults for the purpose of this programme include;
 lone parents
 looked after children
 care leavers
 ex-offenders
 carers
 traveller communities
 long term NEET
 long term unemployed
BME groups
women
 those without basic skills

Page 2



9. This funding will allow additional and alternative support to be made available 
to the groups detailed above and will provide individualised packages of 
support, which will include:

 a diagnostic assessment of need and action plan detailing a personalised 
pathway to education employment or training;

 a personalised package assembled and delivered in the right sequence to 
meet individual needs and address personal barriers e.g. substance 
misuse, mental health services, housing, childcare, careers or financial 
advice;

motivational, life, basic and vocational skills training commissioned as 
required from a framework of providers;

 connecting beneficiaries to and providing ongoing support when they enter 
further education, apprenticeships, self–employment/employment or 
training. This will address any issues that may arise with the intention of 
supporting individuals to remain engaged on their personalised pathway;

 support for and engagement with the institutions/employers involved, to 
enhance the success rates of participants.

10. The project funding is broken down as follows:

Priority 1.4 – Adults 18+ with multiple/complex barriers (DMBC)
Pathways to 
Progression

ESF Funding (£) 
(60%)

Match Funding (£) 
(40%)

Total (£)

Doncaster 299,259 250,000 549,259

Impact of Pathways to Progression

11. The total outcomes the funder has set for the South Yorkshire programme are 
as follows:

Priority 1.4 - 18+ year olds and those with multiple and complex barriers:
1,240 participants of which:
 211 will enter education or training on leaving
 91 unemployed participants into employment, including self-employment, on 

leaving
 160 inactive participants into employment or job search on leaving
 273 participants in employment, including self-employment, 6 months after 

leaving

Of which Doncaster totals are:

 47 will enter education or training on leaving
 61 unemployed participants into employment, including self-employment, on 

leaving
 36 inactive participants into employment or job search on leaving
 20 participants in employment, including self-employment, 6 months after 

leaving

Match Funding

12. As with all ESF funded projects, bidders are required to provide match 
funding known as the intervention rate. Match funding can be cash or 

Page 3



commissioned activities that are aligned to the ESF priorities detailed in the 
specification bidders respond to. The intervention rate for this programme is 
forty percent.  With £3.78m of ESF funding available over a 3 year period 
from 2018 to June 2021 the match funding required is £2.5m (shared across 
the consortium of South Yorkshire Local Authorities).This provides a total 
value of £6.3m in activity to support those groups detailed above.

13. This activity will improve outcomes for participants in both the adult and the 
younger age group by providing a range of opportunities designed to build on 
achievements and outcomes to date and improve life chances

14. The project will receive £299,259 ESF funding with a match funding 
contribution of £250,000. This has been allocated from £97,040 currently in 
earmarked reserves as part of the councils match funding and £152,960 
Ambition underspend.

15. Sheffield City Council, operating as accountable body for the Pathways to 
Progression ESF funding, will enter into contractual arrangements with DMBC 
in order for the project to be delivered. It is recommended that Cabinet 
delegate contracting authority to the Director of People. 

16. Delivery will commence in April 2019 and will run for 30 months in total.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

17. The options considered included:

- Delivering the project (preferred option): this project is part of a wider sub-
regional programme of activity that utilises European funding to deliver to 
targeted cohorts moving them into, or closer to, employment.

- Do nothing (not recommended): This option would see no additional 
services provided for the cohorts set out in the body of this report.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION

18. It is recommend that Cabinet support the delivery of this programme to 
support vulnerable and marginalized adults with multiple complex barriers to 
address basic skills, move closer to the labour market or re-engage with 
education, training and employment.

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES

19. The project will impact on the Council’s key outcomes by:

Outcomes Implications 
Doncaster Working: Our vision is for 
more people to be able to pursue their 
ambitions through work that gives 
them and Doncaster a brighter and 
prosperous future:
 Better access to good fulfilling work
 Doncaster businesses are 

supported to flourish

The project will support 
vulnerable, marginalised and 
disadvantaged young people, 
and adults with multiple and 
complex barriers to:
 Re-engage with education, 

training and employment
 Address basic skills so they 

Page 4



 Inward Investment can compete effectively in 
the labour market

 Move into or closer to the 
labour market.

Doncaster Living: Our vision is for 
Doncaster’s people to live in a 
borough that is vibrant and full of 
opportunity, where people enjoy 
spending time:
 The town centres are the beating 

heart of Doncaster
 More people can live in a good 

quality, affordable home
 Healthy and Vibrant Communities 

through Physical Activity and Sport
 Everyone takes responsibility for 

keeping Doncaster Clean
 Building on our cultural, artistic and 

sporting heritage

The project will support 
marginalised residents into the 
labour market improving their 
quality of life.

Doncaster Learning: Our vision is for 
learning that prepares all children, 
young people and adults for a life that 
is fulfilling:
 Every child has life-changing 

learning experiences within and 
beyond school

 Many more great teachers work in 
Doncaster Schools that are good or 
better

 Learning in Doncaster prepares 
young people for the world of work 

A focus on addressing basic 
skills so that residents can 
compete in the labour market, 
including employability skills is 
an integral part of the project.

Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for a 
borough that cares together for its 
most vulnerable residents:
 Children have the best start in life
 Vulnerable families and individuals 

have support from someone they 
trust

 Older people can live well and 
independently in their own homes

The model provides regular 
consistent contact with a 
support worker who works with 
residents as they overcome 
barriers to employment and 
move into the labour market.
Work can have a positive 
impact on health and 
wellbeing.

Connected Council: 
 A modern, efficient and flexible 

workforce
 Modern, accessible customer 

interactions
 Operating within our resources and 

delivering value for money
 A co-ordinated, whole person, 

whole life focus on the needs and 
aspirations of residents

Page 5



 Building community resilience and 
self-reliance by connecting 
community assets and strengths

 Working with our partners and 
residents to provide effective 
leadership and governance 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS

20. If this programme was not agreed there would be reputational damage for 
DMBC within SCR. SCR would have to readjust already agreed allocations 
with other LA’s within SCR.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS ND – 19/03/2019

21. The Localism Act 2011 provides local authorities with a “general power of 
competence” which enables them to do anything that an individual can do as 
long as the proposed action is not specifically prohibited. There are no 
specific statutory prohibition, preventing the Council from implementing this 
Project. 

22. Legal Services should be consulted at the earliest opportunity to review the 
terms and conditions of the grant from ESF and to ensure that any obligations 
and in particular clawback provisions are transferred down to any future 
providers.

23. Any providers appointed must be procured in accordance with the Councils 
contract procedure rules, Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and the grant 
agreement with ESF.

24. Further legal advice will be required as this project progresses. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [SB Date 18/03/19]

25. The purpose of this report is to accept the ESF Grant of £299,259 to deliver 
the ESF Pathways to Progression project.  As part of this acceptance the 
Council is required to provide a match funding contribution of £250,000 to 
support the programme.

26. The Council’s match funding of £250,000 will be made from an Earmarked 
Reserve (Ref: 2015-10) of £97,040 held specifically for Pathway to 
Traineeships and the remaining £152,960 held specifically for Ambition to 
support pathways to progression. Both amounts are subject to terms and 
conditions and the contribution towards this match funding in 2019-20 fulfils 
these terms and conditions.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS [JC Date 03/04/19]]

27. As the project will lead to the creation of new temporary posts, these posts 
should be fully evaluated prior being added to the structure/advertisements.  

28. The posts should be recruited to in line with Doncaster Council’s recruitment 
Policy looking at Redeployment in the first instance

Page 6



29. Employees who were employed before 6 April 2012 and have 1 year’s 
continuous service, or after 6 April 2012 and have at least two years 
continuous service, accrue employment rights. Employees who complete 2 
years continuous service accrue rights to a redundancy payment.

30. Fixed-term employees have the right not to be treated less favourably than 
comparable permanent employees because they are on a fixed-term contract. 
This means you must treat fixed-term employees the same as comparable 
permanent employees unless there are 'objectively justifiable' circumstances 
for not doing so (ie there is a genuine, necessary and appropriate business 
reason).This means the same or equivalent (pro-rata) pay and conditions, 
benefits, pension rights and opportunity to apply for permanent positions 
within the business.

31. Under the Fixed-term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) 
Regulations 2002, employees who have been on a fixed-term contract for 
four years or longer will usually be legally classed as permanent if their 
contract is renewed or if they are re-engaged on a new fixed-term contract.

32. The only exemptions are when employment on a further fixed-term contract is 
objectively justified to achieve a legitimate business aim or when the period of 
four years has been lengthened under a collective or workplace agreement.

33. The ODR must be sent to peer challenge panel for consideration prior to any 
posts being added to the structure. The HR Portal will need updating to reflect 
the new posts.

TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS [PW - 15/02/19]

34. There are no specific technology implications in relation to this report.  Any        
technology requirements to support the delivery of the Pathways to        
Progression Programme will need to be considered by the Technology       
Governance Board.

HEALTH IMPLICATIONS [CW - 25/02/19]

35. Learning outcomes and health outcomes are intrinsically linked. On the 
whole, investments in improving learning outcomes should also improve 
health outcomes. Evidence shows that education, training and employment 
are key socio-economic factors in determining health status (Marmot, 2010). 
Programmes that focus on reducing the gap in educational attainment 
between the disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged children are likely to 
impact positively in reducing long-term health inequalities in Doncaster. It is 
also positive to see specific mention of support for young parents. It is widely 
accepted that pregnancy amongst teenagers and early motherhood may be 
synonymous with impaired educational achievement, poor physical and 
mental health, social isolation, poverty and associated factors. There is also 
an acknowledged understanding that socio-economic disadvantage can be 
both a cause and a consequence of teenage motherhood. Efforts break the 
cycle of teenage pregnancy and poverty through training and education is 
deemed a positive step support by Public Health.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS [DH&JB – 15/02/19]

36. Pathways to Progression (P2P) funded by the Department for Work and 

Page 7



Pensions (DWP) aims to support 18+ adults with complex/multiple barriers 
into employment, self-employment, education, training and improve basic 
skills.

37. Marginalised adults for the purpose of this programme include:
 lone parents
 looked after children
 care leavers
 ex-offenders
 carers
 traveller communities
 long term NEET
 long term unemployed
BME groups
women
 those without basic skills

38. The target cohort was prioritised within the ESF priority call specifically 
because the statistics for the cohorts identified demonstrated a need for 
additional support.  As the Accountable Body, Sheffield City Council has 
undertaken an Equalities Impact Assessment for this programme.

CONSULTATION

39. Consultation originally took place with Scott Cardwell Assistant Director 
Development, Jennefer Holmes Head of Service Skills and Enterprise and 
Cabinet Portfolio Holders Nuala Fennelly and Bill Mordue.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

40. ESF call for proposals Priority Axis 1: Inclusive Labour Markets, Pathways to 
Progression:https://www.gov.uk/european-structural-investment-
funds/learning-and-skills-project-call-in-sheffield-city-region-lep-
oc28s17p0733 

REPORT AUTHOR
Dawn Hall, Local Office of the Children’s Commissioner Manager
Telephone: 01302 735003
Email: dawn.hall@doncaster.gov.uk

REPORT CONTRIBUTOR
Jonathan Bucknall, Senior Strategy and Performance Manager
Telephone: 01302 734547
Email:  jonathan.bucknall@doncaster.gov.uk

Damian Allen
Director of People

Page 8

https://www.gov.uk/european-structural-investment-funds/learning-and-skills-project-call-in-sheffield-city-region-lep-oc28s17p0733
https://www.gov.uk/european-structural-investment-funds/learning-and-skills-project-call-in-sheffield-city-region-lep-oc28s17p0733
https://www.gov.uk/european-structural-investment-funds/learning-and-skills-project-call-in-sheffield-city-region-lep-oc28s17p0733


www.doncaster.gov.uk

____________________________________________________________________

                   
To: THE CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF CABINET

BREXIT Preparedness Fund

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s)

Wards Affected Key Decision

Mayor Ros Jones & 
Cllr Bill Mordue

All Yes

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. Doncaster Council and our Partners have been undergoing strategic and 
operational planning for Brexit for the last twelve months, fundamental to this 
are a set of priorities which include:

 Gathering and sharing intelligence and information likely to be of value in 
identifying and managing the risks, threat and opportunities arising from EU 
Exit.

 Managing our collective response to ensure effective service delivery is 
maintained, continues to be responsive and robust business continuity 
arrangements are in place.

 Working in partnership with the Sheffield City Region and the community to 
monitor and mitigate the economic impact of EU Exit on business resilience, 
food and essential supply chains, workforce and business investment.

 Taking all reasonable steps to minimise the impact of EU Exit on community 
cohesion, particularly those within communities that might feel especially 
vulnerable because of actual or perceived implications of EU Exit.

2. In ensuring we have timely and robust business continuity arrangements in 
place it was important that we discussed our preparations for this fund at the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 27th February 2019, who are wholly 
supportive of the preparation’s alluded to within this report.

3. The purpose of this report is therefore to seek to accept and use the recently 
approved funding by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) to support the implementation of Doncaster’s Brexit 
planning for a period of two years (Ending 31st March 2021).  (Doncaster’s 
allocation equates to £210k).

4. Government has indicated that the decisions on how this grant will be utilised 
is at the discretion of Councils, with an expectation that it will fund additional 
planning and capacity.  Therefore the proposition presented in this report is 
for the Council to use this funding to:

Date: 7th May 2019                            

Page 9

Agenda Item 7.



  Provide dedicated support to businesses to both mitigate any negative 
impacts of Brexit and take advantages of opportunities (for example to 
increase exports). This proposal levers in match funding from Doncaster 
Chamber which is estimated to be £196,400.
  Establish a flexible Contingency Fund to allow the Doncaster to address the 

challenges created by Brexit as they emerge.

5. The business support approach directly addresses one of the key priorities 
identified in Doncaster’s recently endorsed Inclusive Growth Strategy, which 
determines the importance of supporting our current businesses to export 
which enables employment growth, higher value goods and services (and 
therefore jobs) and improved productivity. 

6. The creation of a contingency fund support the Council’s key role in 
minimising the risks and threats of the UKs exit on our communities, our role 
in ensuring community cohesion, mitigating safe regulatory standards for 
goods and livestock arriving into and out of Doncaster and future proofing 
Doncaster’s businesses and workforce. 

EXEMPT REPORT

7. The contents of this report are not exempt.  

RECOMMENDATIONS

8. Doncaster Council has a critical role in minimising the risks and threats of the 
UK’s EU exit on our communities and businesses, whilst also ensuring we 
maximise the opportunities this situation presents for Doncaster. 

9. The proposed recommendations to Cabinet are fourfold, and are to be 
delivered within the financial years 2019/ 2020 and 2020/ 2021:

a) Firstly, to finance dedicated business support via Doncaster Chamber 
(£165,000) as described in paragraphs 14 to 20; this proposition levers 
in £196,400 match funding and will require the production of a funding 
agreement between both parties. 

b) Secondly, to approve the creation of a Council Brexit Contingency 
Fund (initially £45,000) to cover any eventuality that arises;

c) Thirdly, delegate responsibility for the detailed decisions on draw down 
of funds from the Brexit Contingency Fund to the Chief Financial 
Officer [Assistant Director of Finance] in consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder.  

d) Finally, enable the ability for the Council to receive additional sums into 
the Contingency Fund from Government for the purpose of preparing 
and mitigating the impact of Brexit.

10. This report also recommends to Cabinet that if there are any impacts that 
we need to fund in addition to the Brexit fund these are to come out of 
Council reserves where possible, not mainstream budgets.  

Page 10



WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER?

11. The implications of Brexit on UK residents and businesses is hugely 
significant, with the agenda ever evolving as Government determine the 
different elements of legislation currently passing through Parliament; the 
report attempts to present options for mitigating the impact on Doncaster for 
both businesses and communities alike.

BACKGROUND

12. On the 28th January 2019 Communities Secretary Rt Hon James 
Brokenshire MP, stated ‘Local authorities have a critical role to play in 
making a success of Brexit in their areas. I’m determined to ensure councils 
have the resources they need, which is why I’m releasing £56.5 million of 
extra finance to help them to deliver essential services and keep residents 
well-informed. This funding will not be the only resource councils receive 
from central government to fund Brexit costs’. Doncaster’s proportion of this 
allocation equates to £210,000 to be paid across two financial years (18/19 
and 19/20).  A further £10 million will be allocated by Government during 
2019/20 to respond to specific local costs that may only become evident in 
the months after the UK exits the EU. 

13. In response to the opportunities presented by Government to finance Brexit 
preparations there are two fundamental propositions that we recommend 
financial support for, the rationale and justification for these are contained 
below, with the sole mantra that we need to take all reasonable steps to 
ensure our residents and businesses are supported through this difficult and 
challenging period of transition, that fundamental to this, the reforms below 
align to our regional tactical response on Brexit, and resonate with the spirit 
and reforms contained within the recently produced Inclusive Growth 
Strategy and the Doncaster Growing Together Programme. 

Business Support

14. Doncaster Inclusive Growth Strategy demonstrates that Doncaster remains 
comparatively sensitive to economic shocks.  One of the contributing factors 
to this lack of resilience is that Doncaster businesses export less than many 
other towns and cities.  With Brexit imminent, there is an urgent need to put 
resources in place to support existing exporters, ensuring that Doncaster 
does not go backwards, and to support more SMEs to internationalise, 
diversify and reduce risk by reducing their dependency on domestic markets 
only.

15. Doncaster’s new Inclusive Growth Strategy highlights the significance of 
international trade to Doncaster’s future prosperity, with Doncaster Chamber 
currently providing a crucial role in this area within the short term, however 
the ability to keep pace with the negative effects of Brexit in the long term 
requires a support package that stabilises our economy and enables its 
growth; there are three areas where additional international trade capacity is 
required: 

Trade Facilitation
16. Goods leaving and entering the UK require supporting documentation to 

demonstrate the contents and its origin.  The documentation is extremely 
technical; with the likelihood it will become more complex in the near future 

Page 11



as a result of Brexit. This will place an extra burden on existing exporters 
and stretch the Chamber’s current resource beyond capacity. The 
consequence of this could, regrettably, be significant delays and barriers to 
local firms when it comes to getting their goods out of Doncaster and into 
global markets. Government has labelled this work as being in the ‘national 
interest’ at this critical time for the economy.

Brexit Support
17. Doncaster Chamber network’s ‘risk register’ poses circa 20 absolutely 

essential questions relating to business continuity to government.  
Presently, only a third of these questions have been satisfactorily answered 
by government leaving businesses with far more unknowns than knowns.

18. There is no resource that can be created that will, realistically, be able to 
address business concerns about Brexit as far as possible, businesses 
could be doing to mitigate risk, and make sure their goods get in and out of 
the country whilst simultaneously supporting firms to identify new 
opportunities in different markets.  There is however, absolutely certainty, 
that firms will need assistance, support and regular signposting.  They will 
also need someone who can play a facilitating role to ensure that, for 
questions that don’t yet have answers, that government is being chased up 
and clarity and guidance sought.

19. As part of this overall proposition, it is therefore recommended that a ‘Brexit 
helpdesk’ is created as part of a broader suite of international trade 
provision in Doncaster ensuring that all Doncaster firms have access to a 
reactive resource that can constructively and practically respond to Brexit 
related queries and emergencies.

Internationalisation
20. In parallel with increasing trade facilitation capacity and providing a Brexit 

helpdesk, it is suggested that a more proactive plan is put in place to grow 
the number of Doncaster businesses that export by increasing the frequency 
and quality of export support services in the borough. In addition to 
developing existing activity (that is good quality but ad hoc and not utilised 
as much as it could be by industry) there is a need to do a more in depth 
piece of research into our export community to fully understand what their 
needs and issues are over the coming years.  It is therefore also proposed 
that a core element of this work would be producing quantitative and 
qualitative research into 100 Doncaster exporters allowing for the intelligent 
development of future export support services (both commercial and 
funded).

BREXIT Contingency Fund

21. In our preparations for a post Brexit economy Government has released 106 
technical notices to provide guidance on a plethora of EU related issues; in 
ensuring the impacts are mitigated as practically possible it is appropriate to 
create a Brexit Contingency fund (initially £45,000) to cover any eventuality 
that arises. This fund will provide a role in ensuring we minimise the risks 
and threats of the UK exit on our communities for example to support 
community cohesion, and mitigating the safe inspection and regulation of 
goods arriving and exiting through Doncaster, the latter being of extreme 
importance given the prominence of international gateways within 

Page 12



Doncaster.

22. Additional funding allocated to Doncaster for the purpose of preparing for or 
mitigating the impact of BREXIT will be incorporated in the BREXIT 
Contingency Fund.  In addition the Council is seeking to maximise the 
resources that are brought into Doncaster to support Brexit, with a range of 
funding streams likely to be channelled through government departments 
over the coming weeks.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

23. The deliberations contained within this report are based on scenario 
planning for a range of scenarios   The options available to us as a Local 
Authority may be limited - given our ability to influence the legislative 
reforms currently being debated by Parliament, however for the purpose of 
this report, the option presented to Cabinet include do nothing; the preferred 
option or a watered down version of reforms. Our favoured approach 
includes supporting communities and businesses alike, this option aligns to 
our Doncaster Growing Together Programme and the Inclusive Growth 
Strategy, and also presents Doncaster with an opportunity to enrich a 
sustainable economy. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION

24. Given the implications arising from Brexit it is appropriate to consider the 
risks associated with our business population and our communities in the 
transition period beyond April 2019. The approach suggested within the 
report details firstly a proposition by Doncaster Chamber to support our 
existing business community for a period of 2 years; the latter part is to 
provide dedicated responsive support to the Council to help meet individual 
requirements (ie the inspections of goods and services arriving into 
Doncaster). Therefore the package of support recommended within this 
report aims to mitigate some of the risks potentially experienced by our 
communities and businesses alike; failure to do nothing will result in a loss 
of financial resources or a detrimental impact on economy. 

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES
Outcomes Implications 
Doncaster Working: Our vision is 
for more people to be able to 
pursue their ambitions through work 
that gives them and Doncaster a 
brighter and prosperous future;

 Better access to good fulfilling 
work

 Doncaster businesses are 
supported to flourish

  Inward Investment

The health of Doncaster’s 
economy (jobs, growth and trade) 
is dependent on whether local 
business is able to plan 
investment based on a new 
trading relationship with the EU.

All businesses are seeking a 
resolution to the UK’s trading 
position.   Once this is available, 
Team Doncaster will be able to 
determine its priorities for a new 
working partnership with the 
private sector.

Page 13



The ability to support local 
companies to overcome BREXIT 
challenges is crucial to sustaining 
Doncaster’s growth.  

Doncaster Living: Our vision is for 
Doncaster’s people to live in a 
borough that is vibrant and full of 
opportunity, where people enjoy 
spending time;

 The town centres are the beating 
heart of Doncaster

 More people can live in a good 
quality, affordable home

 Healthy and Vibrant 
Communities through Physical 
Activity and Sport

 Everyone takes responsibility for 
keeping Doncaster Clean

 Building on our cultural, artistic 
and sporting heritage

The UK will remain in Europe, 
although not in the European 
Union.   Cultural events and 
networks will still be open to UK 
communities.

Investment in the town centres - 
as a catalyst for increasing 
productivity - will be one of the 
themes of the new UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund.

   

Doncaster Learning: Our vision is 
for learning that prepares all 
children, young people and adults 
for a life that is fulfilling;

 Every child has life-changing 
learning experiences within and 
beyond school

 Many more great teachers work 
in Doncaster Schools that are 
good or better

 Learning in Doncaster prepares 
young people for the world of 
work 

In theory, Local Authorities and 
the Higher and Further Education 
sectors will still be able to 
participate in transnational EU 
programmes such as Horizon 
(research) and Interreg 
(knowledge exchange).  

Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for 
a borough that cares together for its 
most vulnerable residents;

 Children have the best start in 
life

 Vulnerable families and 
individuals have support from 
someone they trust

 Older people can live well and 
independently in their own 
homes

The Local Government 
Association is seeking guidance 
from Government on the 
implications for care 
responsibilities, particularly those 
with ‘settled’ status. 

Connected Council: 

Page 14



 A modern, efficient and flexible 
workforce

 Modern, accessible customer 
interactions

 Operating within our resources 
and delivering value for money

 A co-ordinated, whole person, 
whole life focus on the needs 
and aspirations of residents

 Building community resilience 
and self-reliance by connecting 
community assets and strengths

 Working with our partners and 
residents to provide effective 
leadership and governance 

Operations within the Council 
may need to adjust to new UK 
law e.g. human rights legislation 
and immigration policy.

Council’s role as community 
leaders will come to the fore.

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS

25. Given the very nature of Brexit there are significant risks to all Localities, for 
the purpose of this report we have listed the more appropriate:

26. Impact on the economy and our residents - Regional forecasts project 
lower medium-term growth when the UK exits the EU, given Doncaster is 
susceptible to economic recessions the requirement to support our business 
stock through these difficult times will be key.

 The UK Government is under great pressure to secure a trading 
arrangement that will allow the UK business to thrive.  Local business 
report the biggest impacts will be anti-competitive trade barriers, 
restrictions on the movement of goods and raw materials and product 
standards.  However, if the UK adopts a preferential trading relationship 
based on one set of trade rules (the Norwegian model), or a Canadian 
model where there will be rules for UK trade and another for EU trade, the 
Confederation of British Industry’s (CBI) opinion is that in reality the UK’s 
trading businesses and those in the supply chain will have to obey EU rules 
to trade with the EU - even if no deal is agreed.

27. Productivity - Productivity levels - the amount of value created for every 
hour somebody works – have been poor for the UK since the financial crisis 
and Doncaster has particularly struggled. The low wage/low skill/low 
productivity vicious circle affects Doncaster and Yorkshire more than most 
other parts of the country. UK per worker productivity has now fallen back to 
below its pre-recession 2007 level, with Doncaster ranking 59 out of 60 
cities in the Centre for Cities report published in late 2017.  

28. Our aim, through the evolving local inclusive industrial growth strategies and 
devolved powers, must be to drive up productivity, boost earning power and 
improve the quantity and quality of jobs.

29. There is an assumption that the Government intend to allocate additional 
funding to Council’s to mitigate the impact of Brexit.

Page 15



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials SRF Date 19/3/19]

30. The Localism Act 2011 provides the Council with the so called general 
power of competence which allows a Local authority to do anything which 
an individual may generally do. The Council can utilize this power to put in 
place the dedicated business support and the Brexit contingency fund 
detailed within the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials…RI]

31. The withdrawal of the UK from the EU could have far reaching financial 
consequences, however it is difficult to quantify the effect until the detail of 
the final deal is known.

32. The Council has received £105,000 in 2018/19 and will receive another 
£105,000 in 2019/20 for Brexit preparation.  There are no conditions 
attached to this grant.  It is proposed to award a grant of £165,000 to 
Doncaster Chamber in 2019/20 and retain £45,000 as a contingency to 
allocate to projects as and when required.  The awarding of the grant to 
Doncaster Chamber will need to comply with Financial Procedure Rules 
E.14 – E.16 which cover the approval required (Cabinet approval for grants 
over £50,000), the protection of the Council’s interests, terms and conditions 
of the grant and the outcomes expected.  As the money will be spent in 
2019/20, the £105,000 received in 2018/19 will need to be carried forward 
into 2019/20.  This will need to be approved by Cabinet.

33. There is the potential for the Council to receive further funding in 2019/20 
should there be specific costs incurred.  The use of the funding will be 
confirmed at that point in line with Financial Procedure Rules.

34. The Council is currently in receipt of European funding.  The Government 
intends to underwrite the UK’s allocation for structural and investment fund 
projects under this EU Budget period to 2020 in the event of no-deal and to 
consult on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, a practical successor to ESF 
and ERDF, this year.

35. As part of local government funding, the Council retains 49% of locally 
collected business rates.  This percentage is due to increase to 75% from 
2020/21 meaning the Council will be more reliant on business rates to fund 
its activities.  If there is a downturn in the economy following Brexit, this 
could result in lower than anticipated business rates and therefore have a 
direct impact on the funding of the Council.

36. Financial Management will continue to monitor the Brexit negotiations and 
update the Medium Term Financial Forecast accordingly.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS Officer Initials CB 

37. Employment regulations prior to the 29th March 2019 will continue to apply 
as well as existing enforcement arrangements and workers will continue to 
be entitled to the same rights as those are covered under The EU 

Page 16



(Withdrawal) Act 2018. It would seem likely that any new European 
Employment Regulations introduced during any transition period may well 
apply even though UK government representatives will not have participated 
in their creation. The Government have published a Guidance Document on 
workplace rights if there’s no Brexit deal which indicates the intension to 
keep the majority of regulation with some amendments to reflect that the UK 
will no longer be a member of the EU. In the longer-term it will be easier for 
Parliament to cease, or amend, established rights without the intervention of 
the European Courts.

38. Free movement of workers will cease and it is highly likely that the UK's 
immigration regime will change following Brexit. This may leave the Council 
and other businesses at risk of losing workers especially low-skilled 
workers. The Government have recently introduced a toolkit to help 
employers and their EU staff understand and apply for UK settlement as 
Brexit approaches. The scheme will be phased in later this year, and will 
gradually open more widely until it is fully open. This will not protect the 
Council and other employer from the future risk of being unable to attract 
talent, having to increase the number of sponsored immigration applications 
or being unable to fill low skilled roles. There are also potential HR 
implications as EU funded posts cease and potential for increases in 
diversity incidents if tensions and divisions heighten.  

TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials…..ET]

39. There are no anticipated technology implications.

HEALTH IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials…RS.. Date 

40. There are significant health implications from Brexit. These are described in 
this paper. National health organisations are leading on much of the risk 
mitigation. However local impacts are being managed though the Local 
Health Resilience Partnership together with the local authority. Further work 
to assess impacts and ensure appropriate mitigation will be needed in the 
run up to the UK’s exit of the EU.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS [CAF]

41. Decision makers must consider the Council’s duties under the Public Sector 
Equality Duty at s149 of the Equality Act 2010. The duty requires the 
Council, when exercising its functions, to have ‘due regard’ to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited under the act, and to advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations between those who share a ‘protected characteristic’ and 
those who do not share that protected characteristic.

42. The Council will comply with amendments to UK law implemented as a 
result of the UK’s exit from the EU.

CONSULTATION

Page 17



43. A plethora of consultation has taken place on the impact of Brexit on 
Doncaster economy, most recently at an Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
which interviewed both Local Authority officers and the Doncaster Chamber 
CEO. The evidence from this session was unilateral support for targeted 
interventions that support both residents and businesses alike.
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS

44. There are no background papers to this report. 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS
Christian Foster, Head of Service, Strategy and Performance
Tel: 01302 734416
Email: christian.foster@doncaster.gov.uk

Debbie Hogg
Director of Corporate Services

&
Peter Dale

Director of Regeneration & Environment

Page 18


	Agenda
	6. Pathways to Progression - Ambition 2
	7. BREXIT Preparedness Fund

